

Broxwood View Limited

Barrie House, 29 St Edmund's Terrace, London

Thames Water Emergency Preparedness Plan

October, 2022

Card Geotechnics Limited 4 Godalming Business Centre Woolsack Way, Godalming GU7 1XW Telephone: 01483 310600 www.cgl-uk.com



Copyright: Card Geotechnics Limited

Card Geotechnics Limited ("CGL") has prepared this report in accordance with the instructions of Broxwood View Limited ("the Client") under the terms of its appointment for consulting engineering services by the Client. The report is for the sole and specific use of the Client, and CGL shall not be responsible for any use of the report or its contents for any purpose other than that for which it was prepared and provided. Should the Client require to pass copies of the report to other parties for information, the whole of the report should be so copied, but no professional liability or warranty shall be extended to other parties by CGL in this connection without the explicit written agreement thereto by CGL.

Author	Madeleine Monnicken MSci (Hons) GMICE FGS	dam, Engineer	mmonin		
Checked	Joseph Slattery, Associ MEng (Hons) BEng CEng MI	ate Director CE MIEI FGS RoGEP		Joseph Slat	tery
Approved	Mark Creighton, Director CEng FICE			M. P. Orta	8
Reference	CG/28408B	Revision	0	Issue Date	October 2022

Card Geotechnics Limited, 4 Godalming Business Centre, Woolsack Way, Godalming, Surrey, GU7 1XW Telephone: 01483 310 600



CONTENTS

1.	INTRODUCTION	3
2.	SITE CONTEXT	4
2.1	Site Location	4
2.2	Site Description	4
2.3	Purpose	5
2.4	Objectives	5
2.5	Roles and Responsibilities	6
2.6	Definitions	6
3.	REFERENCE DOCUMENTS	7
4.	PROJECT CONTEXT	8
4.1	Proposed Development	8
4.2	Buried Critical Assets	8
5.	PREVENTION	10
5.1	Potential Types of Emergency Scenarios	10
5.2	Assessment and Prevention	10
5.3	Assessments, Reports & Surveys Undertaken & In Place	10
5.4	Live Movement Monitoring System	11
6.	PREPAREDNESS	13
7.	RESPONSE	15
8.	EMERGENCY CONTACTS	17

FIGURES

Figure 1	Site Location Plan
Figure 2	Site Layout and Exploratory Hole Location Plan

APPENDICES

Appe	endix A	Utili	ity P	lan	
-	•• -	_			-

Appendix B Route to Hospital



1. INTRODUCTION

Card Geotechnics Limited (CGL) has been instructed by Broxwood View Limited (the Client) to undertake an Emergency Preparedness Plan (EPP) for the proposed construction works at Barrie House, 29 St Edmund's Terrace in the London Borough of Camden. This EPP sets out the procedures to manage incidents that are unlikely to, but may, occur during construction works specifically in relation to the Thames Water main that runs ~4.1m north of the proposed basement.

This document has been prepared to enable serious emergency events, should be encountered during the construction process, to be dealt with responsibly.

Whilst it is not expected that any such occurrence will take place, it cannot be assumed that serious emergencies may not be met during the construction works. In order to respond effectively to such occurrences, careful advanced planning must be implemented as the level of preparedness will directly influence the magnitude of hazard or damage in an emergency situation.

Safety planning is composed of two basic phases: a preventative phase and a reactive phase. The preventative phase is concerned with preventing the occurrence of the incident or accident. The reactive phase is concerned with the response once the incident or accident has occurred. This document addresses the prevention, preparedness, and response phases to an occurrence in a timely and effective manner.



2. SITE CONTEXT

2.1 Site Location

The site, Barrie House, is located at 29 St Edmund's Terrace, London, NW8 7QH. The site is located within the London Borough of Camden. The approximate National Grid Reference for the site is 527495E, 183575N.

The site is bound to the south by St Edmund's Terrace and to the west by Broxwood Way. Two rows of terraced houses and apartment blocks are present to the north of the site, referred to as 32 to 72 Kingsland and 1 to 16 Kingsland. To the east of the site, buildings named Regent Heights and 30 to 36 St Edmund's Terrace are positioned. Adjacent to the north-east of the site lies Barrow Hill water treatment plant.

A site location plan is included as Figure 1.

2.2 Site Description

The site comprises a roughly square plot approximately 0.18 hectares in area and is currently occupied by Barrie House, an eight-storey detached 'T-shaped' residential block as well as an abandoned twostorey masonry lodge. The existing residential block is located approximately centrally within the site and includes a basement beneath the centre of the building footprint.

Landscaped gardens are located around the building with several deciduous trees, which are predominantly clustered in an area to the east of the building. Several large stumps are also present along the south and west of the site. Vehicular access to the site is off Broxwood Way and leads to a surfaced car parking area in the west of the site.

The site generally slopes down from north to south with the highest point located in the north-east corner of the site at approximately 48.6mOD. The lowest point is in the south-west corner of the site with a level of approximately 42.0mOD. The distance on site between these points is approximately 65m, resulting in a slope of about 1 in 10. With reference to the topographical map of Camden within Camden's Strategic Flood Risk Assessment¹ (SFRA) the local area around the site appears to slope down from Primrose Hill (approximately 200m north-east of the site) towards the south-west. There is also a small slope down to the south towards *Regents Park* (approximately 200m south of the site).

A site layout plan is included as Figure 2.

¹ URS. (July 2014). London Borough of Camden – Strategic Flood Risk Assessment. 47070547.



A Thames Water main runs north to south within the west boundary of the site and west to east outside the north boundary of the site. At the closest point, the water main is 4.1m from the proposed basement. The pipe is understood to be 24" (610mm) in diameter constructed from cast iron. The impact of the proposed development on the water main has been assessed in detail in CGL's Thames Water Impact Assessment² and should be referred to for full details.

2.3 Purpose

This EPP provides a framework for the preparation of the emergency arrangements required by law, in particular Regulation 30 of the Construction Design and Management (CDM) Regulations 2015:

(1) Where necessary in the interests of the health or safety of a person on a construction site, suitable and sufficient arrangements for dealing with any foreseeable emergency must be made and, where necessary, implemented, and those arrangements must include procedures for any necessary evacuation of the site or any part of it.

(2) In making arrangements under paragraph (1), account must be taken of -

(a) the type of work for which the construction site is being used;

(b) the characteristics and size of the construction site and the number and location of places of work on that site;

(c) the work equipment being used;

- (d) the number of persons likely to be present on the site at any one time; and
- (e) the physical and chemical properties of any substances or materials on, or likely to be on, the site.

(3) Where arrangements are made under paragraph (1), suitable and sufficient steps must be taken to ensure that:

(a) each person to whom the arrangements extend is familiar with those arrangements; and

(b) the arrangements are tested by being put into effect at suitable intervals.

2.4 Objectives

- This Emergency Preparedness Plan sets out the strategic approach for the emergency arrangements for the Barrie House construction project;
- It identify the potential for emergency situations at the Barrie House site;
- It develop & set in place preventative measures to mitigate risk;
- To develop & outline a preparedness plan which should be accomplished in advance to ensure that all aspects of the emergency plan are executed with minimal delays or problems; and,



To develop arrangements to respond to such emergencies.

² CGL (October 2022) Barrie House, 29 St Edmunds Terrace, London. Thames Water Impact Assessment – Revision 1. Ref. CG/28408B



2.5 Roles and Responsibilities

The roles and responsibilities are set out in Table 1 below.

Table 1: Roles and responsibilities.

Role	Company
Client	Broxwood View Limited
Main Contractor	G&S Construction Engineering Ltd
Structural Engineer	Richard Tant Associates
Piling Contractor	Arma Piling Ltd
Temporary Works Engineer	To be appointed
Groundworker	To be appointed

2.6 Definitions

A glossary of terms used in this report is set out in Table 2 below.

Terminology	Definition
Incident	An occurrence or event that interrupts normal process or precipitates a crisis.
Emergency	A situation that poses an immediate risk to life, health, property or the environment and that, in most cases, require urgent intervention to prevent a worsening of the situation.
Hazard	A situation that, if left un-addressed, may result in an injury, loss or damage of some kind.
Risk	The combination of the likelihood and the consequences of a specified hazardous event (incident). A risk then always has two elements, 1) the likelihood that a hazard may occur and, 2) the consequences (severity) of the hazardous event
Structural instability	Any change in a structure resulting in it becoming unsafe.

Table 2: EPP definitions glossary.



3. REFERENCE DOCUMENTS

The following documents and drawings have been referred to as part of this assessment.

Category	Title	Reference
CGL Reports	Thames Water Impact Assessment – Revision 1	CG/28408B
	Ground Movement & Sewer Impact Assessment	CG/28408B
	Monitoring Movement and Contingency Plan	CG/28408B
Third party Reports	GDP - Basement Construction Plan - Ugly Brown Building – Plot A	V 3 - Basement Construction Plan - GDP 230221
Structural Drawings	Notes	5295-TS01
514111165	Proposed Partly Basement Floor	5295-TS02
	Proposed Partly Ground Floor	5295-TS03
	Section 1-1	5295-TS10
	Section 2-2	5295-TS11
	Suggested Method of Works 1 Basement Plan	5295-SM01
	Suggested Method of Works 2 Basement Plan	5295-SM02
	Suggested Method of Works 3 Ground Floor	5295-SM03
	Suggested Method of Works 4 Ground Floor	5295-SM04
	Suggested Method of Works 5 Section A-A Stages	5295-SM05
	Suggested Method of Works 6 Section B-B Stages	5295-SM06
	Suggested Method of Works 6 Section C-C Stages	5295-SM07
	Suggested Method of Works 6 Section D-D Stages	5295-SM08
Thames Water Standard	Thames Water, Guidance - Working Near our Assets	-
Codes & Specs	Construction (Design and management) Regulations 2015	CDM 2015
	Management of Health and Safety at Work Regulations 1999	H&S Work Regs 1999



4. PROJECT CONTEXT

4.1 Proposed Development

The site comprises of Barrie House and an abandoned 'porter's lodge'. Barrie House is an eight storey detached residential block with a basement, founded on pads. The 'porter's lodge' is understood to be a two storey masonry structure.

The proposed development is understood to comprise demolition of the 'porters lodge', extension of the existing building on site to the north in the area of the current car park, and excavation of a single storey basement beneath the extension.

For full details of the proposed development, the relevant CGL reports detailed above should be reviewed.

4.2 Buried Critical Assets

The location of the Thames Water asset is shown on the Midland Survey Ltd utility plan³ (drawing no. U07932 0) included in Appendix A.

A chamber associated with this TW asset is located approximately 3m north-west of the site, as illustrated in Plate 1, below, and the utility plan included within Appendix A. In this chamber, the pipe invert level was recorded at 43.21mOD. Due to the chamber location off-site, no excavations or loads are anticipated to be removed or applied over this manhole and the sewer alignment.

Following liaison with the TW engineer, the pipe is understood to be 24 inches (~610mm) in diameter and constructed of cast iron (rather than the 500mm diameter as indicated on the utility plans included in Appendix A). The pipe crown level is therefore at approximately 43.8mOD at the chamber.

The crown level of the pipe drops from 45.35mOD in the north to 43.8mOD at the chamber, to 43.1mOD in the western corner. Along the south-western boundary the pipe crown level drops further to 42.3mOD around the site entrance off Broxwood Way and to 41.1mOD in the southern corner of the site. The pipe extent is illustrated in Plate 1, below, in relation to the proposed basement excavation.

³ Midland Survey Ltd (June 2022) Barrie House, London, NW8 7QH. Utility Survey. Ref. U07932 0





Plate 1: Thames Water 24" water main location. CL = crown level.

The properties of the water main are presented in Table 4 below.

Table 4: Asset details.

Asset Name	Drawing Ref.	Construction material	Pipe diameter (m)	Crown level (mOD)	Axis level (mOD)
TW 24" water main	U07932 0	Cast iron	0.61	+45.35 in the north- east of the site +41.10 in the south- west (see Plate 1)	+45.05 in the north- east +40.80 in the south- west (see Plate 1)



5. PREVENTION

5.1 Potential Types of Emergency Scenarios

The following is a list of potential emergency scenarios identified:



Severe weather; and

Flood / inundation.

5.2 Assessment and Prevention

This section considers actions which are designed to eliminate or minimise risks.

- Risk Assessments & Method Statements. Planning is risk assessment based. Foreseeable risks will be documented throughout project RAMS. Where the risk has been identified the main contractor, G&S Construction Engineering Ltd, will endeavour to mitigate against it with control measures. These will include initial protection against encountering the hazard and reactive controls should our initial controls fail.
- 2. Housekeeping & Logistics Plan. This topic deals with the maintenance of clearly accessible access/egress routes to facilitate the safe and speedy movement of any attending emergency service. General Housekeeping must be maintained to a high standard to mitigate the risk of general slips, trips and falls.
- 3. Always ensuring the safe access to site for emergency response teams.
- 4. Weekly Audit Checks. Weekly Health and Safety Sheets.
- 5. Competent Design Team design approvals and verification of Good Robust Sub-Contractors.
- 6. Evacuation plan. The site-specific fire plan will detail the assembly muster point and the roll call procedure will be followed.

5.3 Assessments, Reports & Surveys Undertaken & In Place

- Utility survey completed by Midland Survey Ltd in June 2022. This shows that the depth to the water main varies from 0.70mbgl in the north-east corner, to 1.0mbgl in the north-west corner, to 1.60mbgl in the south-west corner.
- Thames Water Impact Assessment completed by CGL in October 2022² detailing the impact of the proposed development on the TW 24" water main. The ground movements associated with the installation and deflection of the piled wall and net loading and unloading of the soil were assessed against Thames Water criteria. The impact was shown to be well within the assessment criteria.



5.4 Live Movement Monitoring System

Monitoring Movement and Contingency Plan – completed by CGL in October 2022⁴ detailing the proposed monitoring of the water main. The following colour code system for the trigger values is proposed:

- o Green: All behaviour is as expected, continue monitoring;
- Amber I: Minor deflection occurring but no clear trends developing;
- Amber II: Increased deflections and movement trends developing outside the allowable limits; and
- **Red**: Movements causing clear hazard to groundwaters and neighbouring constraints.

Trigger limits are selected in relation to expected/predicted movements and the effects the induced movements may have on third party structures. For this report, this means the Thames Water 24" water main. In all circumstances, immediate action shall be taken to limit further movement when the acceptable values are exceeded. Trigger limits are summarised in Table 5 below, based on the potential consequences of the predicted movements. For full details the report should be referred to⁴.

Precise level targets above the Thames Water 24" water main alignment at ground level						
Alert Status	ert Status Maximum vertical displacement (mm) Actions in the event of a trigger I being exceeded					
Green	<3	CP1 as Table 6				
Amber I	3 to 7	CP2 as Table 6				
Amber II	7 to 10	CP3 as Table 6				
Red	>10	CP4 or CP5 as Table 6				

Table 5: Proposed trigger limits.

No vibration monitoring is proposed as the water main is some 4.1m from the proposed piled wall at the closest point. Continuous Flight Auger (CFA) piling method, a method that keeps vibrations to a minimum, is proposed to be used. The proposed drawings indicate that the minimum distance between the pile centre and water main centreline is 4.1m, some 9x the diameter of the piles. As recognised by CIRIA C760 'the installation of one pile every few metres will result in little ground movement'. Whilst the comment is related to king post walls, it is also true of bearing piles. Therefore, potential ground movements during the installation are predicted to be localised with negligible effect on the water main assuming good workmanship.

⁴ CGL (October 2022) Barrie House, 29 St Edmund's Terrace, London Monitoring Movement and Contingency Plan CG/284080B





M At the amber trigger level, Thames Water should be informed of the breach and the agreed mitigation action should be shared. At the red trigger level, the relevant emergency Thames Water contacts should be informed, and work should be stopped immediately in the effected zone. Emergency contacts are included in Section 8.



6. PREPAREDNESS

This section addresses activities which should be accomplished in advance to ensure that all aspects of the emergency plan are executed with minimal delays or problems. Having made an assessment and put in place preventive measures, the emergency plan can then be prepared to deal with the risks that cannot be avoided or controlled. The main elements of the plan are:

- 1. Emergency assignments of personnel The Contract Manager and Site manager will be responsible for assigning the roles of internal emergency contacts, roles & responsibilities.
- 2. Consultation with emergency services:
 - Although the emergency services will carry out their own risk assessments on site before proceeding with any rescue/action, the Main Contractor will consult with the local emergency services as part of the emergency planning process for the purpose of:
 - Making the local emergency services aware of the scope of works, locations and risk profile and to establish a collaborative working relationship between key contacts;
 - Benefiting from the specialist knowledge of the local emergency services in peerreviewing the Main Contractor emergency arrangements;
 - Where appropriate, involving the local emergency services when testing the Main Contractor emergency protocols.
 - Any emergency where the emergency services are involved on site, they will take the lead and the Main Contractor incident response team will provide support as directed by the emergency services.
- 3. Communication The essence of this EPP is communicated to during:
 - Main Contractor project site inductions,
 - Toolbox talks,
 - Pre-start contractor briefings,
 - Task specific briefings.

A copy of this EPP shall be made available to the Main Contractor supply chain and other necessary parties whose operations could either be:

- Adversely affected by incidents occurring within the Main Contractor controlled work sites, and/or,
- Incidents which occur within 3rd party work sites, which could potentially have an adverse effect on the Main Contractor operations.



- A copy of the EPP will be shared with the local emergency services and Thames Water and invited to review and comment on the suitability.
- 4. Main Contractor organizational chart and planning of suitable resources: where these are located or can be obtained it may be necessary to pre-position these in readiness, particularly in remote or inaccessible locations.
- 5. Communication and call-out procedure for key personnel and subsequently all those affected by the emergency.
- 6. Alert/notification Lists Details on appointments and assignments will be shared with all parties concerned.
- 7. Coordination of the reporting structures during the emergency period and ownership of the plan.
- 8. Review Reviews of procedures and site plans will be undertaken as the site develops with the team members with the assistance of the site manager. The site manager will contact the H&S department. They will attend site and carryout a thorough incident report detailing and documenting all the available evidence. Protocol will be followed in an attempt to gain all available evidence prior to allowing works to recommence. Once site operations have restarted it is important that the information the Main Contractor collects is used positively to help plan for future events.
- Testing and maintenance: both the incident coordinator and those given key roles in emergency response. This can cover exercises, briefings, briefings, site office meetings and even simulation training / drills.



7. RESPONSE

This section delineates the tasks and responsibilities to be accomplished immediately prior to, during, and just after the emergency. This covers the arrangements for reacting to the emergency. A simple but effective model is the five-point plan, providing a logical sequence to follow:



Detection: how the hazard will be detected at the earliest possible time in order to avoid or reduce the outcome;

Alarm: how the emergency is communicated both within the organisation and without;

Evacuation: this covers the routes and actions to be followed, assembly area, and means of ensuring that everyone is accounted for;



Containment: the means to contain or extinguish the hazard; and



Restoration: actions needed to return the organisation to normality.

Actions of the person in charge at the emergency scene – all personnel will be briefed on the EPP for dealing with any potential Thames Water emergency. The Site Manager will be responsible for liaising with the Emergency response teams & the third-party asset owner (Thames Water). The Site Manager will also have a deputy assigned / Assistant Site Manager. The important actions by the persons communicating details of any incident are:

The below ground basement excavation and construction contingency plan is outlined in Table 6 below.



Table 6: Basement excavation and construction contingency plan

Ref:	Scenarios	Likely Probability	Contingency/Control Measure	Action by	Status
CP 1	All recorded movements are within the Green limit	VH	 Continue Standard monitoring as planned. Carry out routine inspections of works and review monitoring data weekly. 	PC/SC	OPEN
CP 2	Recorded movements fall within the Amber 1 limit	н	 As CP 1 but ensure: Review monitoring data to establish that real movement and trend is occurring rather than outliers having developed. Review construction methodology and sequencing. Increase monitoring frequency in the region of recorded increased movement and also consider providing extra monitoring points at max movement positions if appropriate. Inspect internal and external building walls, adjoining party walls/constraints and exposed ground for any visual signs of movement or distress. 	PC/SC	OPEN
CP 3	Recorded movements fall within the Amber 2 limit	L	 As CP 2 but must ensure: Review monitoring data to establish real movement and trends have developed rather than outliers have developed. Review construction methodology and sequencing and make refinements where appropriate and agreed with project team. Install extra/check monitoring points at max movement positions and increase monitoring frequency. Be prepared to cease works until movement cause(s) established. Alternatively, it may be prudent to speed up construction works. Seek advice of Engineers. Additional contingency propping should also be considered where appropriate to limit further movement 	PC/SC	OPEN
CP 4	Recorded movements fall above the Red limit and have ceased	VL	 As CP 3 but must ensure: Implement changes to working methodology such as backfill/cease works in effected region/increase speed, changes in works procedure, install additional propping etc. To be agreed with project team. Continue to monitor and review data at increased intervals and establish a safe way forward, to be discussed, developed and agreed with the project team and stakeholders as required. 	PC/SC	OPEN
CP 5	Recorded movements fall above the Red limit and continue to move	VVL	 As CP 4 but must ensure that: Seek advice from Engineers and implement additional emergency works (additional propping, backfilling, increased sped of construction/support etc) or ceasing work in area affected and evacuate. Inform adjoining party wall occupiers and asset owners. Continue to monitor and review data at increased intervals and establish a safe way forward, to be discussed, developed and agreed with the project team and stakeholders as required. 	PC/SC	OPEN

Key: PC – Principal Contractor. SC – Specialist Sub-contractor. PD – Principal Designer. SD – Specialist Designer



8. EMERGENCY CONTACTS

Main Contractor:

- o G&S Construction Engineering Ltd
 - Site contacts to be appointed.

M Thames Water:

- Thames Water 24-hour service number 0800 316 9800
- Thames Water Waste Operational Control Centre 0800 009 3908
- Thames Water Clean Water Network Management Centre 0800 009 3909

External Contacts:

- Emergency Services (Fire, Police, Ambulance) 999
- Local Police 101
- Local Hospital / NHS Trust 020 7794 0500
- Local Hospital Royal Free Hospital, Pond Street, London, SN3 2QG. A route to the hospital is included in Appendix B.

FIGURES





APPENDIX A

Utility Plan



INDICATIVE NORTH

NOTES

GENERAL NOTES :--TOPOGRAPHICLA SURVEY HAS BEEN SUPPPLIED BY THIRD PARTY, THEREFORE MIDLAND SURVEY ACCEPTS NO RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE ACCURACY OF THIS DRAWING. THE COORDINATE GRID IS BASED ON ASSUMED VALUES.

ALL LEVELS ARE IN METRES DERIVED FROM GPS TRANSFORMATION.

THIS DRAWING HAS BEEN PRODUCED WITH A PLOT SCALE ACCURACY OF 1:200

SERVICE COVERS INDICATED WHERE VISIBLE. PIPE INVERTS / DETAILS SURVEYED FROM SURFACE INSPECTION ONLY. GENERALLY DAMAGED COVERS AND COVERS WITHIN HIGHWAYS WILL NOT BE LIFTED TREE SPECIES SHOULD BE CONFIRMED BY TREE SPECIALIST IF CRITICAL.

OVERHEAD CABLES ARE INDICATED USING REMOTE SURVEY METHODS AND ARE SUBJECT TO SEASONAL VARIATION, AND SHOULD BE TREATED AS APPROXIMATE. THE SURVEYOR WILL NOT BE RESPONSIBLE FOR THE OMISSION OF DETAILS OBSCURED DURING SITE SURVEY RICS PROFESSIONAL STANDARDS 3RD EDITION RULE 1.19 APPLIES TO THIS SURVEY.



THE SURVEY

SSOCIATIO

QUAY AUDOR LADO

©Copyright Midland Survey Ltd . Reproduction of this information is prohibited without written authorisation from Midland Survey Ltd.

construction ine





Column	Size	Dead (kN)	Live (kN)		Wind (±kN)		
		'7 storey'	'4 storey'	'7 storey'	'4 storey'	'7 storey'	'4 storey'	
C1	А	75	50	100	75	0	0	
C2	В	925	620	375	270	15	0	
C3	D	1100	670	420	200	15	0	
C4	D	1050	740	275	175	180	113	
C5	А	750	490	270	140	180	113	
C6	Α	750	460	230	115	75	50	
C7	А	690	420	250	125	30	0	
C8	В	500	305	225	125	15	0	
С9	А	220	215	110	110	0	0	
C10	Α	220	215	105	105	0	0	
C11	А	75	50	100	75	0	0	
C12	В	1075	730	430	300	0	0	
C13	E	1350	675	450	210	0	0	
C14	F	150	130	25	25	0	0	
C15	С	780	500	300	200	0	0	
C16	С	300	245	100	70	0	0	
C17	А	450	360	225	175	0	0	
C18	А	70	70	80	80	0	0	
C19	Α	70	70	80	80	0	0	
C20	А	790	440	350	155	0	0	

Wall	Length (m)	Thickness	Dead (kN/m)		Live (kN/m)		Wind (±kN) at wall extremities			
							East / West		South / North	
			'7 storey'	'4 storey'	'7 storey'	'4 storey'	'7 storey'	'4 storey'	'7 storey'	'4 storey'
W1	4	200	425	245	175	90	0	0	180	90
W2	1.4	200	475	345	275	190	0	0	0	0
W3	1.4	200	125	100	30	21	0	0	0	0
W4	1.4	200	450	308	225	145	0	0	0	0
W5	1.6	200	425	310	200	140	0	0	0	0
W6	1.4	400	375	270	55	40	0	0	0	0
W7	0.8	225	75	55	10	10	0	0	0	0
W8	2	400	525	425	125	80	0	0	1010	450
W9	2	225	50	40	10	10	0	0	0	0
W10	2	400	700	410	170	80	420	185	1010	450
W11	2	225	36	36	5	5	0	0	0	0
W12	2	400	620	570	170	110	420	185	1010	450
PW	PERIMETER	200	25	25	5	5	0	0	0	0

C	
Colu	r
Д	•
В	\$
C	
D)
E	
F	

Notes.

C This drawing is the copyright of Richard Tant Associates.

NOTES

- 1. This drawing is to be read in conjunction with the specification and all relevant Engineers and Architects drawings.
- 2. Work to figured dimensions only.
- 3. For general notes see drawing 5295 TS01.

Preliminary Scheme for Comment Only Do not order materials from this drawing.



Richard Tant Associates Consulting Civil & Structural Engineers 54 LISSON STREET LONDON NW1 5DF TEL: 020 7724 1002 FAX: 020 7224 8883 info@richardtantassociates.com

APPENDIX B

Route to Hospital

Google Maps Barrie House, 29 St Edmund's Terrace, London Drive 2.1 miles, 14 min NW8 7QH to Royal Free Hospital, Pond St, London NW3 2QG



Imagery ©2022 Bluesky, CNES / Airbus, Getmapping plc, Infoterra Ltd & Bluesky, Landsat / Copernicus, Maxar Technologies, The 500 m GeoInformation Group, Map data ©2022

Barrie House

29 St Edmund's Terrace, London NW8 7QH

 Head south-west on St Edmund's Terrace towards Titchfield Rd

36 s (0.1 mi)

→ 2. Turn right onto Avenue Road/B525

1 min (0.3 mi)

Continue on Elsworthy Rd to Haverstock Hill/A502

\rightarrow	3.	Turn right onto Elsworthy Rd	5 min (1.0 mi)
←	4.	Turn left onto Primrose Hill Rd	0.4 mi
5	5.	Slight left onto Belsize Park Gardens	——— 0.2 mi
\rightarrow	6.	Turn right onto Belsize Grove	0.2 mi
←	7.	Turn left onto Haverstock Hill/A502	0.2 mi

Take Lawn Rd to Fleet Rd

\rightarrow	8.	Turn right onto Downside Cres	
←	9.	Turn left onto Lawn Rd	0.1 mi
			0.2 mi
Cont	inue	on Fleet Rd to Hampstead Grn	
←	10.	Turn left onto Fleet Rd	— 1 min (0.3 mi)
←	11.	Turn left onto Pond St/B518	0.2 mi
			0.1 mi
Drive	e to y	our destination	
←	12.	Turn left onto Hampstead Grn	28 s (249 ft)
6	13	Turn left	49 ft
1	13.	Destination will be on the left	
			200 ft

Royal Free Hospital Pond St, London NW3 2QG